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DOCUMENTS IN RELATION TO TOM ARTHUR’S MEETING WITH LEIGH SPARKS 6 
SEPTEMBER 2022 
 
DOCUMENT 1 
 
From: [redacted]  
Sent: 05 September 2022 17:59 
To: Minister for Public Finance, Planning & Community Wealth <MinisterPFPCW@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: Briefing for Ministerial Quarterly Meet with STP 
 

[redacted] 
 
As discussed to see a revised brief with an Annex added on the PfG and a line at the 
agenda to invite the Minister to seek the support of STP on the PfG. 
 
Sorry for the delay. 
 
regards 
 
 

[redacted]  

Planning, Architecture and Regeneration Division 

[redacted], 2FS Victoria Quay, EH6 6QQ  

 
From: [redacted]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 01 September 2022 15:47 
To: Minister for Public Finance, Planning & Community Wealth <MinisterPFPCW@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; 
Chief Planner <Chief.Planner@gov.scot> 
Subject: Briefing for Ministerial Quarterly Meet with STP 
 

[redacted] 
 
Please find attached a light briefing for the above, as discussed. 
 
Kind regards 
 
[redacted]  

Planning, Architecture and Regeneration Division 
Victoria Quay, EH6 6QQ 
[redacted]@gov.scot   
www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration 
 
Please note I am working from home or office and can be most easily reached by email or Teams.  
I work Mon-Fri and am online from 9.00am. 

 
  

http://www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration
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DOCUMENT 2 
 

What Regular catch up with towns stakeholder 

Where 
Microsoft Teams meeting  

Join on your computer or mobile app  
Click here to join the meeting  

Or call in (audio only)  

[redacted] United Kingdom, Edinburgh  

Phone Conference ID: [redacted]  

Find a local number | Reset PIN  

SCOTS Connect  

Learn More | Help | Meeting options  

 

When Tuesday 06 September 
10.15 – 10:45 

Key Message(s) This is an opportunity to reaffirm SG commitment to Town Centre 
Action Plan 2 (TCAP) and BIDs, including the work STP and 
partners are undertaking to support its delivery and the promotion of 
the Scotland Loves Local programme.  

Who [redacted], Chair, Scotland’s Towns Partnership 
[redacted], CEO, Scotland’s Towns Partnership  

Why Minister requested regular catch ups with key stakeholder. 

Supporting 
officials  

[redacted]  

Briefing contents Annex A: Event Agenda 
Annex B: Summary Issues 
Annex C: Background briefing  
Annex D: PfG 
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AGENDA                                                                                                       ANNEX A 
 

This is part of a series of regular informal catch ups requested by the Minister following 
earlier meetings of the Minister with the Town Centre Action Plan Review Group, chaired by 
Professor Sparks. 
 

Agenda Proposals from STP 

1. Town Centre Action Plan 

2. Scotland Loves Local 

3. Business Improvement Districts 

4. Priorities and Resources  

5. AOB 
 
In addition Mr Arthur is invited at the suggestion of Special Advisor Kate Higgins to seek the 
support of STP for the PfG being published today. (refer Annex D) 
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SUMMARY ISSUES        ANNEX B 
 

1. TCAP – we are sending you a submission on suggested next steps for TCAP which 

includes an option for a bi-annual forum which STP would be tasked with supporting.  

 

2. SLL - STP have been providing a lot of support to councils who have committed up to 

£12m funding for SLL utilizing the Local Authority Covid Economic Recovery funds (LACER).  

As the Minister was unable to support our request just before recess for £100k towards this 

work, this has put a strain on STP resources. STP continue to support councils and develop 

the SLL programme as far as possible. 

 

3. BIDs – STP have advised that the City BIDs have expressed concern that they have still 

not been invited to the Retail ILG or the Cities Alliance. The response from retail and cities 

policy colleagues respectively is: ‘the remit of the City BIDs and BIDs generally is broader 

than retail and their contribution will be of more value to some areas elements of the retail 

strategy than others.  The Retail ILG has agreed a delivery plan and is now setting up 

working groups to drive forward some of the actions. There is potential for a role for 

BIDS/City Bids to participate in one or more of the WG’s’ and this will be looked at’. ‘The 

issue of City BIDs participation in the Cities Alliance was raised with SCA Programme 

Director [redacted] and he was going to take the proposition to the SCA leadership groups. 

Policy colleagues are following up with [redacted] for an update. 

 

4. Priorities - STP are keen to discuss priorities for the Minister where they can support SG 

towns policy as part of our place-based community-led approach to regeneration, community 

wealth building and 20 minute neighbourhood ambitions.  One priority is to support the 

Understanding Scottish Places (USP) consortium to review evaluation and data needs.  

 

5. Background briefing on the PfG is included at Annex D. In terms of sensitivities the PfG is 

deliberately brief. It mentions Place Based Initiatives but is silent on the continuation of the 

Scotland Loves Local Programme or Fund which was a £10m PfG commitment from last 

year. 
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BACKGROUND BRIEFING       ANNEX C 
 
Scotland’s Towns Partnership (STP)  
We are providing £400k in 2022/23 to STP through Regeneration budgets. 
 
The role of STP is to act as a hub for relevant information and resource, sharing best 
practice and promoting exemplars across all sectors; supporting learning and building 
community assets through events and a key annual activity plan. 
 
STP’s priorities in 2022/23 are to provide continued resilience and recovery support to local 
businesses, communities and Improvement Districts, including support for the cost of living 
crisis,  deliver pilot Improvement Districts to test more expansive and variant uses of the 
Improvement Districts model, and to support the Scottish Government and other partners 
with promotion, communications, engagement on and implementation of Scotland Loves 
Local and the Town Centre Action Plan 2022, the Town Centre Vision and the Town Centre 
First Principle.  
 
TOWN CENTRE ACTION PLAN RESPONSE 

▪ We published our joint response with COSLA in April 2022. 
▪ STP are delivering a series of regional TCAP roadshows. You attended the first at 

Galashiels, this was followed by North East, then East Lothian, - Highlands and 
Islands - Central - the final session is scheduled for 14 September, 10:00 – 12:00, 
Ayrshire. There has been some good press coverage and learning so far from 
these events. We are proposing a media release shortly.  

▪ Towns and town centres are places which are part of the solution to the big 
challenges facing us on economic recovery, climate, inequalities, health and more.  

▪ Our joint response to the town centre review outlines actions to better embed a 
town centre first approach to ensure the economic, social and environmental 
health of town centres is at the heart of decision making. 

▪ We agree with the vision adopted by the review.  “Towns and town centres are for 
the wellbeing of people, planet and economy.  Towns are for everyone and 
everyone has a role to play in making their town and town centre successful.” 

▪ Our response includes a call to action for all who have an interest in the future of 
our towns, it recognises that success requires collaborative partnership working, 
building on local assets, harnessing the local energy and pride that people have 
for their town centres to develop local solutions. 

▪ Collaborative partnership working which delivers upon a shared vision to improve 
outcomes for people, communities and town centres and resists doing that which 
may cause harm is crucial to achieving the healthier, fairer, greener, successful 
towns our communities deserve. 

▪ Actions focus on outcomes to deliver net zero ambitions, enterprising communities, 
town centre living, better planning, taxation to support net zero, digital skills and 
support, Demonstrator towns and 20 minute neighbourhoods. 

▪ We will now focus on supporting delivery of these actions with our partners and 
communities. 

 
We engaged with a range of organisations and individuals through the collaborative 
joint review of the Town Centre Action Plan  
▪ The review and the response are a product of extensive consultation and collaborative 

work with town centre, local government, third and private sector stakeholders including 
groups who are sometimes not heard.  
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▪ Our joint response with COSLA reaffirms our commitment to collaborative partnership 
working to improve outcomes for people, communities and town centres. 

 
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS 

 
▪ We continue to work closely with Scotland’s Towns Partnership (STP) and BIDs. 
▪ BIDS are important partnerships which deliver local improvements and create platforms 

for local economic growth.  
▪ The support we provided BIDS during the pandemic enabled them to address immediate 

concerns and allow for continued resilience and focussed support for local businesses 
and communities during the pandemic.  

▪ They are an important partnership to provide support during the cost of living and energy 
crisis.  

▪ We are reviewing longer-term BIDs operations to consider the best means to ensure 
longer-term sustainability of BIDs, including adaptions to the current structure and/or 
legislative framework and support for new BIDS models such as Community 
Improvement Districts. 

 
SCOTLAND LOVES LOCAL 
 
▪ We have a PfG commitment to a Scotland Loves Local Programme, which we 

announced as a £10m multi-year programme. The £10 million Scotland Loves Local 
multi-year programme was launched on 9 August 2021.  

▪ The £10m Scotland Loves Local Programme PfG commitment is unresourced.  
However, we did deliver the commitment in 2021-22 with over £2m of funds provided to 
the fund and marketing campaigns and in March 2020 we provided £80m LACER 
funding to local authorities which circa £12m to date has gone towards SLL gift cards. 
We also continue to fund STP at £400k grant pa, part of their grant has been agreed to 
deliver SLL. 

▪ To date circa £12 m of funding has been committed for the SLL cards via LACER mainly 
to low income households. 

▪ This includes Glasgow £8.9m, Aberdeen £1.1m, Argyll & Bute £800k, South Ayrshire 
£500k, with other LA’s still to be confirmed. 

▪ The aim of the SLL programme which includes a fund, national marketing campaign and 
gift card scheme is designed to motivate people to ‘think local first’, supporting local 
business and communities, building wealth in local communities, revitalising town 
centres, increasing footfall and activity safely in local places. 

▪ The programme aims to help counteract the effects of the pandemic where local 
economies have suffered, with the worst effects often in areas with pre-existing 
inequality. It has potential to assist with the current cost of living crisis by directing spend 
locally and as part of a community wealth building approach. 

▪ The Scotland Loves Local Fund Awards totalling £1.5 million have been made, 
supporting more than 100 organisations to bring new creative projects and activity to 
towns and neighbourhoods – helping improve and promote local places while supporting 
local businesses and community enterprise partnerships.  The nominations for 2022 
Awards opened 8 June. 

▪ The Scotland Loves Local campaign has undergone 5 promotional phases the most 
recent being October/November 2021 ahead of Christmas. 
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Programme for Government        ANNEX D 
 
For Regeneration the relevant text in the 2022 PfG is: ‘Continue to invest up to £75 million in 
place based initiatives, which targets our most fragile communities and accelerates our 
ambitions for place and to help people live well locally’.  
 
The ‘Place based initiatives’ mentioned refers to the Place Based Investment Programme 
which aims to support delivery of town centre action, 20 minute neighbourhoods, community-
led regeneration and community wealth building. 
 
Extracts from ‘Q&A document to support ministers and colleagues in conversations with 
stakeholders in relation to the Programme for Government’:  
 
1.1.1 Why is this Programme for Government much shorter than last year’s? 
‘This year’s Programme for Government is being published in the context of the most severe 
cost crisis of our lifetimes. We have used the Programme for Government to set out 
immediate steps this government will take to help families and businesses to get through this 
crisis. We must be clear that given the nature and sheer scale of this crisis, the Scottish 
Government’s limited powers - and our finite, already constrained resources - mean we can 
at best mitigate its impact. 
 
1.1.2 Will the Scottish Government continue to focus on the 26 commitments from 
last year’s Programme for Government which have not yet been fulfilled? 
Many of the Programme for Government (PfG) 2021-22 commitments have been met 
already, including the publication of the National Strategy for Economic Transformation and 
doubling the Scottish Child Payment. 
 
Households and businesses across the country are facing a serious cost crisis, exacerbated 
by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and the UK Government’s approach to Brexit. As we look to 
the next PfG, outlining ambitions for 2022-23, the Scottish Government’s priorities continue 
to be responding to the cost crisis, building a fairer, greener country and securing a 
prosperous recovery from the pandemic. 
 
 
1.1.3 What help does the Programme for Government offer to businesses in the face 
of the current costs crisis?  
Our immediate priority is to ensure households and businesses, as well as the public 
services that support them, are protected from the worst impacts of the cost crisis. 
 
The UK Government holds reserved powers over the economy, the energy market, 
borrowing and economic stimulus that could tackle inflation and the cost crisis. 
 
While we continue to press the UK Government for urgent action in response to concerns 
raised by businesses, the Programme for Government sets out a package of policies and 
activities that we can take to help businesses within our existing, finite, resources.   
 
These are aimed at helping improve energy efficiency; reviewing new and forthcoming 
business regulations; providing a one-stop-shop for information, advice and support through 
the findbusinessupport website; supporting people through skills and training programmes 
and, in the event of redundancy, PACE. 
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DOCUMENT 3 
 
From: [redacted]   
Sent: 05 September 2022 11:01 
To: Minister for Public Finance, Planning & Community Wealth <MinisterPFPCW@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FYI: PfG - DG Economy Stakeholder Calls - Mr Arthur meeting on 6/9 with STP 
 

Hello [redacted] 
 
Special advisor Kate Higgins has suggested that it would be helpful if Mr Arthur 
could arrange a call with STP to encourage support for the PfG.  As Mr Arthur is 
meeting STP tomorrow as pre-arranged, could you please highlight that request to 
him? I am happy to tweak the briefing for him if helpful.  
 
Kind regards 
 

[redacted] 

Planning, Architecture and Regeneration Division 

[redacted], 2FS Victoria Quay, EH6 6QQ  

[redacted]  
My usual work pattern is Monday to Thursday   
www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration 

 
From: [redacted] @gov.scot>  
Sent: 05 September 2022 09:49 
To: [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: FW: PfG - DG Economy Stakeholder Calls 
 

Hi [redacted],  
 
I hope all is good with you?   
 
I’ve been dealing with stakeholder engagement around the PfG for DGE Economy and I put a 
list of the calls that we intend to make to stakeholders on Tuesday to spads at the end of 
last week. 
 
Kate Higgins has come back (email below) to ask if a call could be arranged with the Town 
Centre Partnership and Mr Arthur.   
 
Can I leave that with you please?  
 
Happy to chat if easier,  
 
Thanks, 
 
[redacted]  
 

mailto:MinisterPFPCW@gov.scot
http://www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration
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From: Higgins K (Kate) <Kate.Higgins@gov.scot>  
Sent: 03 September 2022 15:36 
To: [readacted]@gov.scot>; Dobson L (Leanne) <Leanne.Dobson@gov.scot>; McCaig C (Callum) 
<Callum.Mccaig@gov.scot>; Matheson C (Catriona) <Catriona.Matheson@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; 
[redacted]@gov.scot>;[redacted]@gov.scot>; Director of Economic Development 
<DirectorDED@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>;[redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; 
[redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted@gov.scot>; 
[redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; 
[redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: PfG - DG Economy Stakeholder Calls 
 

[redacted ]  

 

I’d add Scottish towncentre partnership for Mr Arthur  

 

[redacted] 

 

Kate Higgins 

 

Special Advisor to the First Minister 

Local Government and Transport 

[redacted] 

 

Sent with BlackBerry Work 

(www.blackberry.com) 

 

[redacted] 

  
  

http://www.blackberry.com/
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DOCUMENT 4 
 
From: [redacted]   
Sent: 06 September 2022 08:53 
To: [redacted]@stir.ac.uk> 
Subject: RE: meeting with Minister amended to 10.15 to 10.45 
 

Ah that’s good [redacted] thanks 
 
 

[redacted]  

Planning, Architecture and Regeneration Division 

[redacted], 2FS Victoria Quay, EH6 6QQ  

[redacted]  
My usual work pattern is Monday to Thursday   
www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration 
 

 

 
From: [redacted]@stir.ac.uk>  
Sent: 06 September 2022 08:51 
To: [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: meeting with Minister amended to 10.15 to 10.45 
 
Morning [redacted], 
 
New diary invite was sent to Leigh to show the 30 minutes and I accepted this on his behalf. 
 
Regards. 
 
[redacted] 
PA – Deputy Principal (Education and Students) 
Room 4B20, Cottrell Building, 

University of Stirling 

Stirling 

FK9 4LA 

 

Tel: [redacted] 

Email: [redacted]@stir.ac.uk  

Web: www.stir.ac.uk 

     

 

http://www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration
http://www.stir.ac.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/universityofstirling/
https://twitter.com/StirUni
https://www.linkedin.com/edu/university-of-stirling-12676
https://www.instagram.com/universityofstirling/
https://www.youtube.com/user/UniversityOfStirling
https://www.stir.ac.uk/
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From: [redacted]@gov.scot [redacted]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 06 September 2022 08:37 
To: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org; [redacted]@stir.ac.uk>; Leigh Sparks <leigh.sparks@stir.ac.uk> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot 
Subject: meeting with Minister amended to 10.15 to 10.45 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside University of Stirling. Do not follow links or open 
attachments if you doubt the authenticity of the sender or the content. 

 
 

Hello all 
 
Private office said they would let you know that the Minister has had to reduce the 
time slot for his meeting with you this morning to half an hour rather than 45 mins as 
above. Just making sure you do know as PO seemed rather busy yesterday. 
 
‘See you’ shortly. 
 
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
  

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.scot%2Fpolicies%2Fregeneration&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C3771fd62bb4f4932f66208da8fda986d%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637980466274218351%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xUusOKsHyh1ftV2WfzQhv16UtSFPjhiMny2u02GDaqY%3D&reserved=0
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DOCUMENT 5 
 
From: [redacted]  
Sent: 05 September 2022 09:52 
To: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org> 
Subject: RE: URGENT- pre meet before meeting with minister tuesday 10.15 
 

Great thanks [redacted] 
 
 

[redacted] 

Planning, Architecture and Regeneration Division 

[redacted], 2FS Victoria Quay, EH6 6QQ  

[redacted] 
My usual work pattern is Monday to Thursday   
www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration 
 

 

 
From: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>  
Sent: 05 September 2022 09:50 
To: [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@stir.ac.uk; leigh.sparks@stir.ac.uk; [redacted]@gov.scot>; 
[redacted]@scotlandstowns.org 
Subject: Re: URGENT- pre meet before meeting with minister tuesday 10.15 
 
[redacted] I’m available at 9:45 so send a teams link and I’m sure Leigh will join if free 
Regards 
 
[redacted}  

Chief Officer 
Scotland’s Towns Partnership 
 
 
On 5 Sep 2022, at 09:44, [redacted]@gov.scot wrote: 

Hi both 

  
What [redacted] was hoping for was a quick chat BEFORE we meet with the 
Minister on Tuesday at 10.15am? is that at all possible? (on teams).  
  
For your info below is how I have set out the agenda and some background for the 
Minister. [redacted], re agenda item 1 TCAP, I have not specifically highlighted your 
‘towns programme board’ suggestion which was conveyed to me by email, as we 
discussed and agreed that the bi-annual forum proposal was broadly the same thing. 
We sent Mr Arthur a submission on Friday to ask him if he would like us to set that 
up and to set out our suggestions for ensuring momentum going forward on TCAP. 
We will advise you if we receive a reply before the meeting. 
  
You will see for agenda item 4 I have mentioned resources but very much as part of 
discussion on priorities for the Minister. 

http://www.gov.scot/policies/regeneration
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RE agenda item 3, I also wonder [redacted] what is the mood music from BIDs at 
the moment regards the cost of living crisis and any risks pertaining to payment of 
levies this year? (No need to reply by email if we are able to meet). 
  
Agenda Proposals from STP 

1. Town Centre Action Plan 

2. Scotland Loves Local 

3. Business Improvement Districts 

4. Priorities and Resources  

5. AOB 
  
SUMMARY ISSUES                                                                                      ANNEX B 
  

1. TCAP – we are sending you a submission on suggested next steps for TCAP which 

includes an option for a bi-annual forum which STP would be tasked with supporting.  

  

2. SLL - STP have been providing a lot of support to councils who have committed up to 

£12m funding for SLL utilising the Local Authority Covid Economic Recovery funds 

(LACER).  As the Minister was unable to support our request just before recess for £100k 

towards this work, this has put a strain on STP resources. STP continue to support councils 

and develop the SLL programme as far as possible. 

  

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
Sent: 02 September 2022 12:40 
To: Leigh Sparks <leigh.sparks@stir.ac.uk> 
Cc: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; 
[redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: meeting with minister next week - Towns 'Board@ 
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Hi Leigh, 
  
Yes, I can confirm that this would be ok for you also. 
  
Regards. 
  
[redacted] 
  
[redacted]@stir.ac.uk 
PA – Deputy Principal (Education and Students) 
Room 4B20, Cottrell Building, 
University of Stirling 

Stirling 

FK9 4LA 

 

Tel: [redacted] 

Email: [redacted]@stir.ac.uk  

Web: www.stir.ac.uk 

     

 

 

 

 

 

  
  
  
From: Leigh Sparks <leigh.sparks@stir.ac.uk>  
Sent: 02 September 2022 09:41 
To: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>; [redacted]@gov.scot; [redacted]@stir.ac.uk> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot; [redacted]@gov.scot; [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org; 
[redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: Re: meeting with minister next week - Towns 'Board@ 
  
I believe I can  be in the Melting Pot that afternoon as well. [redacted] will confirm. 
  
  
  
Leigh Sparks 
Professor of Retail Studies and Deputy Principal 
University of Stirling 
 
Get Outlook for Android 

http://www.stir.ac.uk/
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fghei36&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C29d1effd19e146a074e308da8cbecb70%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637977048367675919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5b2UsBqQpkWD53ct9D8x%2Fjwuiib8IolUojGLnIuambQ%3D&reserved=0
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
Sent: Thursday, September 1, 2022 7:00:49 PM 
To: [redacted]@gov.scot [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Cc: Leigh Sparks <leigh.sparks@stir.ac.uk>; [redacted]@gov.scot; [redacted]@gov.scot>; 
[redacted]@gov.scot; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org 
[redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: Re: meeting with minister next week - Towns 'Board@  
  
CAUTION: This email originated from outside University of Stirling. Do not follow links or open 
attachments if you doubt the authenticity of the sender or the content. 

 
  

Hi [redacted], two options - we can catch [redacted] virtually pre Ministerial meeting or given we 
are all in Edinburgh in person the following day Wed 7th for Board and Cross Party Group, we could 
manage a coffee ! (Not sure of Leigh’s diary commitments but I can make it) 
Free between 2pm and 4:30pm and working from Melting Pot 
Regards 
 

[redacted] 

Chief Officer  
Scotland's I Towns I Partnership 

Office: [redacted] 
m. [redacted] 
e. [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org 
w. www.scotlandstowns.org 
  
Address: Scotland's Towns Partnership | SC419769 |The Melting Pot | 15 Calton Road | Edinburgh | 
EH8 8DL 
  

STP is pleased to be working with the Green Action Trust as our 
charity partner for 2022 - accelerating environmental 
regeneration and progress to Net Zero in Scotland's towns and 
places.  

 

 
Connect to STP: Newsletter, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram & LinkedIn.  
 
Scotland’s Towns Ltd T/A Scotland’s Towns Partnership SC419769 
  

On 1 Sep 2022, at 10:54, [redacted]@gov.scot wrote: 

[redacted] and Leigh 

  
Hope you are well. 
  

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.scotlandstowns.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C29d1effd19e146a074e308da8cbecb70%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637977048367675919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WSmRx3rzzebNRXqF3HHgea%2B3hDzD9%2BqxbNrOe8D68oo%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scotlandstowns.org%2Fget-involved%23contact-us&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C29d1effd19e146a074e308da8cbecb70%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637977048367675919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xYPl%2FnQo8AXOgh2yoV5lXENAiX9xKM89puV1I8m6xrA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fscotlandstown%2F&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C29d1effd19e146a074e308da8cbecb70%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637977048367675919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cdA8j54rK4sQk7HpfJvlCil%2FlixJkFN%2Fw3UnXHMr6U4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FScotlandsTowns&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C29d1effd19e146a074e308da8cbecb70%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637977048367675919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=P35SyToCbOlaRrNEZEm2wC%2BWl5w0ZJOINasjmgkNlLc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fscotlandstowns%2F&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C29d1effd19e146a074e308da8cbecb70%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637977048367675919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=S7GHJelSwUQstfJunTnnznxH%2BGDPZQiRMJis82kqQXU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fgroups%2F4321308%2F&data=05%7C01%7CDP.educationPA%40stir.ac.uk%7C29d1effd19e146a074e308da8cbecb70%7C4e8d09f7cc794ccb9149a4238dd17422%7C0%7C0%7C637977048367675919%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=n5%2Bj0ldJjfRFw6QUqoWJ6cxGBEq6yRlEYY4QhWiIYKc%3D&reserved=0
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I just had a chat with [redacted] re the meeting next week with the Minister including 
approach to TCAP, USP, and SLL.  
  
[redacted] had been saying he would like to meet you soon for a coffee as it has 
been too long. However given the meeting on Tuesday would you both have 30 mins 
spare (or less might do if you don’t) to have a pre-meet with [redacted] and I in 
advance of meeting with the Minister? So Monday or early Tuesday? 

  
On Demonstrators [redacted] said that the agreement of the Demonstrators group 
was that they were content with outline proposals but that there wasn’t yet anything 
to fund? Proposers need to approach us with firm proposals and requests for funding 
for specifics? I am sure you can ask [redacted] more about that if free to meet 
before the meet with the Minister. 
  
regards 
  
[redacted] 
Planning, Architecture and Regeneration Division 
[redacted], 2FS Victoria Quay, EH6 6QQ  

  
From: [redacted]  
Sent: 01 September 2022 09:37 
To: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: RE: meeting with minister next week - Towns 'Board@ 

  

Thanks [redacted] – spoke to [redacted]  
  
[redacted] wouldn’t necessarily see this as separate to what we have already 
discussed which is a bi-annual forum on TCAP/towns with the Minister which would 
incorporate a semi-formal ‘Board’ followed by workshops/talks providing an 
opportunity for sharing success/challenge and support. In particular [redacted] noted 
Local Government education (eg Clackmananshire building out of town education 
buildings) not understanding place/place based approach or TCF and it would be 
good if the ‘board’ could include members who could be tasked with educating and 
holding to account all parts of councils, or if not the Board we find other ways to 
make this happen. 
  
[redacted] – separate to this [redacted] is asking what is happening on 
Demonstrators ? He is being asked and Oban were expecting funds and not 
receiving? 
  
[redacted]  

  
From: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>  
Sent: 31 August 2022 14:13 
To: [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@scotlandstowns.org>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: Re: meeting with minister next week 
Importance: High 
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Hi [redacted] 

  

This has emerged as more of an opportunity to ensure there is a collective group to bring 

focus and resource (co-funding and wider sharing across different functions ) in delivering 

key workable and tactical workstreams that exist out with TCAP2.  There may be a 

discussion to be had in linking with TCAP 2 but needs a view from Leigh and [redacted] on 

that too. 

  

Hope that helps, 
 

[redacted] 

 

Strategy & Relationships 
Scotland's Towns Partnership 
  

<image001.png> 
 

We are proud to lead Scotland Loves Local, the national campaign encouraging us to 'think local' while staying 

safe and taking care.  

Find out how to get involved at lovelocal.scot. #ScotlandLovesLocal  

  

STP is pleased to be working with the Green Action Trust as our charity partner for 2022 - accelerating 

environmental regeneration and progress to Net Zero in Scotland's towns and places.  

 

Scotland's Towns Ltd is registered in Scotland #SC419769 

The Melting Pot | 15 Calton Road | Edinburgh | EH8 8DL 

  

On 31 Aug 2022, at 11:36, [redacted]@gov.scot wrote: 

  

Hi both 

  
I note the below which you provide [redacted] for the meeting briefing: 
‘Introduce a Towns Programme Board to maximise opportunities to refocus existing 
resource. (E.g. USP National Data Tool that could be co-funded’ 
  
Can we get a quick chat so I can understand that please? We are sending a submission to 
the Minister with our proposal for a bi-annual TCAP2 forum which would have a membership 
and invited guests as we discussed.  
  
[redacted] 
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DOCUMENTS IN RELATION TO TOM ARTHUR’S MEETING WITH SCOTTISH 
ASSESSORS ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVE TEAM 29 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 
DOCUMENT 6 
 
From: [redacted]@gov.scot>  
Sent: 28 September 2022 13:27 
To: Minister for Public Finance, Planning & Community Wealth <MinisterPFPCW@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: NDR - Briefing - Ministerial meeting with SAA Executive on 29 Sept 
 

[redacted] 
 
Please find attached a background briefing for the minister’s discussion with the Scottish 
Assessors’ Association tomorrow at 14:00. We would be happy to cover any questions 
before the meeting at the discussion with officials also scheduled tomorrow at 11:00. 
 
Regards, 
 
[redacted] 
 
Non-Domestic Rates Policy  
Local Government & Analytical Services Division  
3-G (N) 
Victoria Quay 
Leith 
EH6 6QQ 
 
Tel. [redacted] 
Mobile. [redacted] 
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DOCUMENT 7 
 
What Meeting with Scottish Assessors Association Executive Team 

Where 
Microsoft Teams meeting  

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device  
Click here to join the meeting  

Meeting ID: [redacted]  

Passcode: [redacted]  

Download Teams | Join on the web 

Or call in (audio only)  
[redacted]  United Kingdom, Edinburgh  

Phone Conference ID: [redacted]  

Find a local number | Reset PIN  

When Thursday 29 September 2022 
14:00-14:30 

Key Message(s)  

Who Scottish Assessors Association Executive Team: 

• Gary Bennett, President 

• Pete Wildman, Vice President 

• David Thomson, Past President 

• Heather Honeyman, Secretary 
 

Why An opportunity to meet with the SAA Executive Team for an update 
on the progress of the revaluation that will take effect on 1 April 
2023. 
 

Expected 
outcome 

For assessors to update you on progress with the revaluation and 
provide them with the opportunity to raise to raise any concerns 
more broadly  
 
And for you to thank them for their work on this critical area of tax 
policy whilst emphasizing the importance of swift progress in all 
Assessor areas and highlight concerns of the differential progress 
to date. 

Supporting official  [redacted] 

Briefing contents Annex A: Speaking Note  
Annex B: Background and Biographies  
Annex C: Summary of Key issues 
Annex D: Progress on draft 2023 valuations 
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ANNEX A 
 
SPEAKING NOTE 
 

• Thank you for taking the time to meet me in this incredibly busy time for you; it is a 
pleasure to see you again. 
 

• There is no doubt that this is going to be a unique, and perhaps uniquely challenging 
revaluation – with its one-year tone date, a new draft roll, extra information-sharing 
requirements in valuation notices and a new two-stage appeals system being 
introduced in a short space of time.  
 

• These changes are the culmination of years of work and I want to thank you firstly for 
the central role you play in delivering these reforms, but also for your tireless 
contributions to the work that has shaped them.  
 

• I was keen to meet today to get an update from you directly on progress towards the 
2023 revaluation.  
 

• But also to air my concerns over the slow progress on the revaluation thus far and 
particularly the differential progress across the country.  

 

• I know the Barclay Review called for Assessors to provide more transparency and 
consistency of approach, noting that if this was not achieved, a new Scotland wide 
Statutory Body should be created which would be accountable to Ministers  
 

• We are not in that position, but I would welcome reassurance that all areas are 
making strong progress even if that isn’t shown in the data coming through on the 
Portal yet.   
 

• I would also be interested in hearing more about assessors’ work on the ground to 
improve  transparency and consistency of approach at the next revaluation. 

 
FOLLOW-UP PROMPTS 
 

• Are assessors confident that revaluation is going as planned despite the challenges?  

• Some assessor areas appear to be going faster than others in revaluation with some 
not uploading any values yet to my knowledge. What is the reason for this? 

• Are assessors finding that the Non-Domestic Rates (Scotland) Act 2020 has led to 
more pre-agreements than in previous revaluation cycles? 

• Do you expect a lot of variation in draft values between 30 November and 1 April? 
 
CONCLUSION 
 

• Do you have any (further) questions or comments for me? 
 

• Thank you for your time, it has been invaluable to hear about revaluation progress 
directly from assessors.  
 

• I wish you luck in the months ahead as we approach 1 April 2023 and whilst I do not 
wish to distract you from the task in hand, I do think it might be helpful to meet again 
in the coming weeks to get a further update on progress.  
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ANNEX B 
 
BACKGROUND AND BIOGRAPHIES 
 
Background 
 
The Scottish Assessors Association (SAA) was founded in 1975 although representative 
bodies for Assessors in Scotland have existed since 1886. Although it is a voluntary 
organisation, all 14 Assessors in Scotland and their senior staff are members. 
 
The SAA aims to facilitate a consistent approach in the administration of valuation, council 
tax and electoral registration services. The SAA also liaise with the Valuation Office Agency 
in England and Wales, the Land and Property Service in Northern Ireland and the Republic 
of Ireland Valuation Office in matters of common interest. 
 
There are four office holders, or members of the SAA Executive Team, who normally hold 
office for a period of 2 years. 
 
Biographies 
 
Gary Bennett, President 
Gary has been the President of the SAA since May 2021. He is the Assessor and Electoral 
Registration Officer (ERO) for the Lanarkshire Valuation Joint Board, covering the North and 
South Lanarkshire Council areas. He is also the Designated Assessor for Electricity 
Generation, Transmission and Distribution subjects across Scotland. 
 
Pete Wildman, Vice President 
Pete is currently the Vice President of the SAA and is set to take over as President in 2023. 
He is the Assessor and ERO for the Central Scotland Valuation Joint Board, covering the 
Clackmannanshire, Falkirk and Stirling Council areas. He is also the Designated Assessor 
for Docks and Harbours across Scotland. 
 
Heather Honeyman, Secretary 
Heather is currently the Secretary for the SAA and will take over as Vice President in 2023. 
She is the Assessor for the Fife Council area and is the Designated Assessor for Water 
subjects across Scotland. 
 
David Thomson, Past President 
 
David is currently filling Past President duties for the SAA after [redacted] retired earlier this 
year. He is the Assessor for the Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board 
covering the Argyll & Bute, and West and East Dunbartonshire Council areas. He is also the 
Designated Assessor for Gas subjects across Scotland. 
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ANNEX C 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This meeting was set up specifically so the SAA could provide you with an update on the 
2023 revaluation. Other topics that may come up include: 

• Resourcing 

• Reform to the appeals system 

• Letter to all proprietors, tenants and occupiers regarding upcoming changes to NDR 
system, including revaluation 

 
Progress towards revaluation 
 
The next non-domestic rates revaluation will take effect on 1 April 2023, based on values at 
the tone date of 1 April 2022. This is the first time the Scottish Assessors are working to a 
one year tone date, and draft values are due to be published on 30 November 2022. 
 
Progress towards revaluation as at 20 September 2022 is included in Annex D.  
 
Resourcing 
 
Since 2019-20, SG has earmarked in the Local Government Financial Settlement, in 
agreement with COSLA, a sum to be allocated to Assessors for the delivery of the Barclay 
Review recommendations. In 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22, this was based on assessors’ 
estimated needs. In 2022-23 this amount was frozen at 2021-22 though this amounted to 
almost exactly the sum sought by Assessors.  
 
The SAA have on numerous occasions raised concern over the uncertainty of this funding 
continuing in the future, this being confirmed on an annual basis, and the Non-Domestic 
Rates (Scotland) Bill’s Financial Memorandum only covers assessors’ estimated costs from 
2019-20 to 2024-25 (Table 1). 
 
Table 1: Assessor costs, 2019-20 to 2024-25, £m 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

2.50 4.60 5.18 5.31 5.54 5.95 

 
Assessors may ask for reassurance that this allocation will continue into the future.  
 
Suggested response if this is brought up:  

• We have acknowledged the importance of assessors being well-resourced to carry 
out their valuation functions as this is the basis of the non-domestic rates system.  

• This is why we have earmarked funding for assessors since 2019-20 through the 
Local Government Financial Settlement. 

• This is only area of government to receive exactly the level of funding requested in 
recent years. 

• I appreciate the calls for certainty in the longer term, and will consider the extent to 
which this can be addressed in the Budget 2023-24 round. 

• Any commitment would have to be given in agreement with COSLA in the context of 
the fiscal framework for local government. 
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Appeals 
 
As noted to you in an e-mail on 21 September, the laying date of the following instruments 
from 7 October to 26 October – these are the three remaining instruments to reform the NDR 
and appeals system: 

• The Valuation (Proposals Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2022 

• The Valuation Roll And Valuation Notice (Scotland) Order 2023 

• The Valuation Timetable (Scotland) Order 2022 
 
While we have had no feedback, we do not expect this delay was welcomed by stakeholders 
as the new two-stage appeals system is scheduled to be introduced on 1 January 2023 and 
assessors in particular require to carry out system development for the two-stage appeals 
system in advance. This delay is unfortunately inevitable however due to a longer-than-
expected consultation process with the required consultees (including the Lord President’s 
Private Office) for another suite of instruments that will be laid by the Justice Directorate and 
relating to the Scottish Tribunals. ‘Our’ instruments must be laid alongside them as they 
cross-refer.  
 
Due to parliamentary privilege, we are not able to share the above draft instruments publicly 
before they are laid (though we have worked with the Scottish Assessors’ Association (SAA) 
on the technical and operational detail of the draft instruments). Assessors and their IT 
developers will therefore have only two months (November and December) to finalise 
system changes with the legislation to hand; and in the meantime must proceed on the basis 
of other available information: we published our response to the Consultation on reforming 
the non-domestic rates system: proposals, the draft valuation roll, content of valuation 
notices, etc.; and shared a process map with the Scottish Rating Surveyors Forum early 
August. A second and more detailed process map developed with the support of the SAA 
will be issued shortly to SRSF and the Scottish Ratepayers’ Forum. 
 
The SAA may evoke the delay to the laying of the legislation, and the challenges of setting 
up an IT system for 1 January 2023, notwithstanding the availability of published information 
indicating what changes are being proposed.  
 
Suggested response: 

• I would firstly like to thank all of you for your contributions to the ongoing work on 
reforming the appeals system.  

• My officials tell me that your input has been invaluable on the technical and 
operational detail of the draft regulations.  

• I aware that the SAA has recently proposed a workshop to users of the Portal's 
Automated Appeals Logging System.  

• I very much welcome this and hope that all parties can collaborate to ensure more 
and better information-sharing early on in the proposal and appeals process in future.  

• There is no doubt that these reforms will require cultural change on ratepayer 
representatives’ part; and that this will take time. 

• Over a number of revaluation cycles, I am confident that these changes can provide 
for a more effective, transparent and streamlined appeals process for the vast 
majority of cases. 

 
Letter on Revaluation/Changes to NDR system 
 
Scottish Government officials are in discussion with the Scottish assessors to issue a 
technical letter that will set out the key information regarding upcoming changes to the NDR 
system, including information on revaluation, the publication of the draft valuation roll, and 
the new appeals system. 
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ANNEX D 
 
PROGRESS ON REVALUATION 
 
2. As at 27th September, draft value data covering 14% of total rateable value (RV) of 
the NDR tax base (24% of all properties) is available. 
 

3. 3 out of 14 Assessor areas have not uploaded any data, including Glasgow. 
  
4. Lothian and Tayside have uploaded values for over 50% of the premises in their 
areas (with Fife just under 50%). Most other Assessors seem to be uploading properties with 
generally low RVs at this stage. For instance Renfrewshire has uploaded new values for 
36% of the properties on its valuation roll, but cumulatively the RV of these properties was 
only 10% of the current RV on the roll in this area.   
 

5. Nationally,  over a third of office premises and office RV has been revalued. Around 
26% of Industrial Subjects, and 19% of shops have been revalued, but the share of RV that 
has been revalued is lower in both cases (17% and 9% respectively).  
 

6. There is very limited data at this point on hotels, public houses, leisure, with only 4% 
of properties and 2% of RV revalued and has changed very little from the previous update on 
20th September.  
 

7. We are seeing some potential quality issues with draft values uploaded so far. 
Analysts will follow-up with Assessors where we identify significant outliers. 
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DOCUMENT 8 
 
From: [redacted]  
Sent: 04 October 2022 09:38 
To: Minister for Public Finance, Planning & Community Wealth <MinisterPFPCW@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted]@gov.scot) [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot>; [redacted]@gov.scot> 
Subject: Note of meeting - Thursday 29 September 2022 - Scottish Assessors Association Executive 
Team 
 

PO, 
 
Please find attached a note of the Minister’s meeting with the Scottish Assessors 
Association Executive Team on Thursday 29 September 2022. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
[redacted] 
 
Non-Domestic Rates Team 
Scottish Government 
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DOCUMENT 9 
 
Meeting with SAA Executive Team   
29 September 2022, 14:00-14:30 
Microsoft Teams 
 
Attendees 
Tom Arthur MSP, Minister for Public Finance, Planning and Community Wealth 
 
Scottish Assessors Association 
Gary Bennett, President and Lanarkshire Assessor 
Pete Wildman, Vice President and Central Scotland Assessor 
Heather Honeyman, Secretary and Fife Assessor 
David Thomson, Past President and Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Assessor 
 
Scottish Government Officials 
 
[redacted] 
 
Revaluation 
 
Progress 
The Minister thanked assessors for the hard work being put in to deliver revaluation 
in the context of draft valuation notices, a one year tone date, a new appeals system, 
and new valuation notices. He sought reassurances around the progress towards the 
next revaluation; and for an update on steps taken by assessors towards greater 
transparency and consistency of approach. 
 
[redacted] advised that a plenary meeting with all assessors was held on 22 
September 2022 and that there were no reports of service failure, however noted 
that this should not mean that a one-year tone date would be deliverable going 
forward. He advised that some assessor’s offices were experiencing staffing or IT 
challenges which have delayed the upload of values onto the assessors portal. A 
revaluation project plan is tabled at all assessor and plenary meetings, which the 
other assessors agreed was on track. Additional meetings have now been scheduled 
to ensure that progress remains on track, with an additional meeting with all 
assessors arranged for 3 October 2022 to progress valuation practice notes.  
 
[redacted] also advised that all assessor offices have been working towards greater 
consistency across the issue through an action plan and issues log. He highlighted 
an example of improved consistency where the draft valuation notice that will be 
issued across Scotland has been standardised. He also noted that more valuations 
will be uploaded for the next valuation as well as property rented lists for comparable 
properties, which will increase transparency and contribute to the ratepayer’s 
understanding of their rateable value. He also wished to note his thanks to all 
assessors across Scotland working under pressurised circumstances. 
 
It was noted that there are difficulties in obtaining information on properties, 
analysing this information, and then determining values within the 8 months from 
tone to draft valuations being published. Assessors reported that there is a lot of 
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experience amongst them and that the Scottish Assessors Association is assisting 
newer assessors where required. 
 
[redacted] noted that pre-agreements on valuations and consultations on the 
approach to valuations are harder to do within a one year tone, however the project 
plan has been helpful in keeping that on track.  
 
[redacted] noted that this is the first time assessors have delivered a revaluation 
with a one year tone date and that this has resulted in a certain amount of learning 
for assessors for future revaluation cycles to understand what their targets should be 
and where the pinch points are. [redacted] noted that one pinch point identified was 
a bottleneck in valuation quality checks and he reported that resources had to be 
diverted within his own office to address this. 
 
Variation across Assessor Areas 
The Minister sought to understand the reasons behind variations across assessor 
areas. 
 
[redacted] advised that different assessor offices lead on different subject matters, 
for example the Glasgow Assessor leads on valuations for licensed premises due to 
the concentration of these properties within that area. He explained that assessors 
will divert resources to certain subjects that will take more time to value, e.g., as the 
Lanarkshire Assessor he has designated responsibility for electricity generation, 
transmission, and distribution subjects across Scotland and that while this is a small 
number of properties, there are large rateable values involved and takes a lot of 
resources. He advised that offices will upload more draft values in October as they 
catch up with valuations. He also noted that the IT issues mentioned earlier in the 
meeting were having an impact on the rate of uploads in some areas.  
 
[redacted] noted that these IT issues were due to planned developments in some 
cases.  
 
[redacted] also noted that some areas will focus more on valuations, and some will 
focus more on quality checking valuations which might cause variation. 
 
Variation between draft and final values 
The Minister asked if there is likely to be change to values between draft values 
published on 30 November 2022 and final values taking effect 1 April 2023. 
[redacted] also asked if there would be any change in values between December 
and January which may impact knowledge available on revaluation at the time of the 
Scottish Budget. 
 
[redacted] noted that there had been no monumental shift in values between draft 
and final values in previous revaluation cycles, however if this were to happen it 
would likely be towards 1 April. [redacted] noted that this is the first time draft values 
will be available so early and this may instigate a response from ratepayers, but this 
is unknown at this time. 
 
The Minister thanked the assessors for their input. He noted that the main message 
from assessors seemed to be that notwithstanding the significant challenges of a 
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one year tone date, draft valuations were on track for publication on 30 November 
2022, and the rate of uploads to the portal was expected to increase in the coming 
weeks. He also advised that he wishes to be alerted of any indications of any 
emerging problems as they arise. 
 
Funding 
 
[redacted] noted there was an uncertainty relating to the additional funding Scottish 
Government had made available for the additional duties for Barclay Implementation 
in the medium to long run. He noted that this may have an impact on recruitment and 
retention of staff in assessor offices. 
 
The Minister agreed to take this point away and consider it. He noted that matters 
related to funding would have to be agreed with COSLA and in the context of the 
fiscal framework for local government. 
 
The Minister reiterated his thanks and best wishes for the revaluation. 
 
 


